
AGENDA REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DATE & TIME Wednesday, June 21, 2023 - 6:30 PM  
LOCATION 

Independence Plaza, 703 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda - Ruth Rambeau Memorial 
Community Room  

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  Public access to this meeting is available as follows: 
Join Zoom Meeting: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83939527392?pwd=QlFkTm04OUlkRU5JVlZOcURuUldBdz09 

 Meeting ID: 839 3952 7392 
 Passcode: 411773 

 Persons wishing to address the Board of Commissioners are asked to submit comments 
for the public speaking portion of the Agenda as follows: 

 Send an email with your comment(s) 
to jpolar@alamedahsg.org and vcooper@alamedahsg.org prior to or during the 
Board of Commissioners meeting 

 Call and leave a message at (510) 871-7435. 

When addressing the Board, on agenda items or business introduced by Commissioners, 
members of the public may speak for a maximum of three minutes per agenda item when 
the subject is before the Board. 

 Persons in need of special assistance to participate in the meetings of the Housing 
Authority of the City of Alameda Board of Commissioners, please contact (510) 747-4325 
(voice), TTY/TRS: 711, or jpolar@alamedahsg.org. Notification 48 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda Board of Commissioners 
to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility or language assistance.   

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. ROLL CALL

2. AB2449 COMPLIANCE - The Chair will confirm that there are 4 members in the



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners June 21, 2023 

same, properly noticed meeting room within the jurisdiction of the City of 
Alameda. Each board member who is accessing the meeting remotely must 
disclose verbally whether they are able to be remote under AB2449: (1) just 
cause (max. 2 per year), or (2) emergency circumstances.” For Emergency 
Circumstances, the request must be approved by a majority vote of the Board of 
Commissioners for the emergency circumstances to be used as a justification to 
participate remotely. Remote Commissioners must provide a general description 
of the circumstances relating to need to appear remotely at the given meeting. 
Commissioner must also publicly disclose at the meeting, prior to any action, 
whether any other individuals 18 years or older are present in the room with the 
member at the remote location, and the general nature of the member’s 
relationship with such individuals. Note: A Commissioner cannot participate in 
meetings of the Board of Commissioners solely by teleconference from a remote 
location for a period of more than 3 consecutive months or 20% of the regular 
meetings for AHA within a calendar year, or more than 2 meetings if the Board 
of Commissioners regularly meets fewer than 10 times per calendar year. 

3. COMMISSIONER RECUSALS

4. Public Comment (Non-Agenda)

5. Closed Session - 6:30 p.m. - Adjournment to Closed Session to Consider:

5.A.  Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (subdivision (d)(1) of
Government Code Section 54956.9) 
Name of Case: Housing Authority of the City of Alameda v. Kathleen Moore 
(Alameda County Superior Court Case No. 22CV008223) 

5.B.  Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (subdivision (d)(1) of
Government Code Section 54956.9) 
Name of Case: Yolanda Holt v. Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, et al. 
(Alameda County Superior Court Case No. RG21107068)  

5.C.  Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (subdivision (d)(1) of
Government Code Section 54956.9) 
Name of Case: Donald and Tina Birks v. Joann Harris and AHA Esperanza 
(Alameda County Superior Court Case No. 23CV033841) (unlimited jx) 

5.D.  Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (subdivision (d)(1) of
Government Code Section 54956.9) 
Name of Case: Donald and Tina Birks v. John Stewart Company, et al. 
(Alameda County Superior Court Case No. 23SC028412)(small claims) 

6. Adjournment of Closed Session

7. RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING

8. Announcement of Action Taken in Closed Session, if any.

9. Public Comment (Non-Agenda)

10. CONSENT CALENDER 
Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or
accepted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners June 21, 2023 

explanation is received from the Board of Commissioners or a member of the 
public. 

10.A.  Approve Minutes of the Board of Commissioners Meeting held May 17, 2023.

10.B.  Accept the Monthly Development Report for Rosefield Village.

10.C.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Housing Programs Department.

10.D.  Approve a one-time pilot to allow the cash out of accrued leave during calendar
year 2024. 

10.E.  Approve transfer of up to $1,000,000 from MTW HAP reserves to cover the
operating deficit incurred by the Housing Programs Department for Fiscal Year 
2023. 

10.F.  Approve the Seventh Amendment to the Consultant Services Agreement dated
4/15/15 between Island City Development and the Housing Authority of the City 
of Alameda. 

10.G.  Adopt of a uniform standard for housing inspections standards for all Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) funded or AHA owned or affiliate-owned 
housing units irrespective of funding source. 

11. AGENDA

11.A.  Adopt Resolution regarding Application for and Implementation of Faircloth to
RAD program for Independence Plaza to Authorize the Executive Director or 
designee to execute all steps necessary to apply for, negotiate and execute all 
documents and implement all activities necessary to apply for Faircloth to RAD 
conversion and related activities in order to proceed with the recapitalization of 
Independence Plaza and budget up to $250,000 for due diligence, and other 
related activities.  

11.B.  Approve changes to the Administrative Plan to implement the approved MTW
activities and new stability vouchers effective July 1, 2023. 

11.C.  Approve a Predevelopment Loan NTE $4 million from Capital Impact for The
Poplar (2615 Eagle Avenue) and Authorize the Executive Director to negotiate 
and Execute all Loan Documents. 

11.D.  Authorize the Executive Director To Fund North Housing Master Plan Costs of
$4,000,000 with Short to Midterm Use of Reserves, Agency Funds, and MTW 
Funds. 

12. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment)

13. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S COMMUNICATIONS

14. COMMISSIONER COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the
Commissioners)

15. CONTINUATION OF CLOSED SESSION OF HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD
OF COMMISSIONERS – IF NEEDED

16. Announcement of Action Taken in Closed Session, if any.

17. ADJOURNMENT

Page 5
Page 13

Page 16

Page 19

Page 25

Page 27

Page 31

Page 33

Page 37

Page 456

Page 463



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners  June 21, 2023 

 

* * * Note * * * 

 Documents related to this agenda are available on-line at:  
https://www.alamedahsg.org/meetings/ 

 Know Your RIGHTS Under The Ralph M. Brown Act: Government’s duty is to 
serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public.  The Board of 
Commissioners exists to conduct the business of its constituents. Deliberations 
are conducted before the people and are open for the people’s review.  In order 
to assist the Housing Authority’s efforts to accommodate persons with severe 
allergies, environmental illnesses, multiple chemical sensitivity or related 
disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may 
be sensitive to various chemical based products. Please help the Housing 
Authority accommodate these individuals. 



 

DRAFT MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 17, 2023 
 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

  



 

  

 

 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  



 

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 



 
 

 
 

Items accepted or adopted are indicated by an asterisk.

 

  
 

  



 

 

 

  

 



 

  

 

  



 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  

 



 
 



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Sylvia Martinez, Director of Housing Development  

Date:  
  

June 21, 2023  

Re: Accept the Monthly Development Report for Rosefield Village.  

BACKGROUND 
The Housing and Community Development Department provides monthly reports on 
projects under construction where either the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda 
(AHA) or Island City Development (ICD) is acting as developer and provides 
performance guarantees. 
 
The Rosefield Village project includes new construction of 78 units and renovation of 14 
units, totaling 92 units, located on the 700 block of Buena Vista Avenue.  ICD is the 
developer.  The overall project scope included both the rehabilitation of existing 
structures and the construction of a new building in the middle of the site.  In addition to 
the 78 units, the new central building includes onsite laundry facilities, property 
management offices, social service coordination offices, a community room, and a 
central courtyard with recreation areas.  Twelve existing units, in five buildings, on the 
east and west sides of the new building were renovated, and one house was converted 
into a duplex. Please see previous monthly Board Reports for project details prior to this 
month's update.  
 
DISCUSSION 
The project received its construction completion and Certificate of Occupancy in August 
2022.   
 
738  Eagle Fire Service 
Staff met with EBMUD in early June for a pre-construction inspection for the installation 
of a new fire service line for the duplex at 738 Eagle.  EBMUD anticipates that their 
work will be done in mid-June, and ICD's contractor will then complete the fire service. 
Staff will then request permission from the Alameda Fire Department to occupy the 
second half of the duplex. 
  
Leasing and Income 
The project achieved 100% lease up of its tax credit units (89 units, including 23 project 



based voucher units) as of October 31, 2022, which is a major milestone.  The site has 
one vacancy and a one unit on hold (see above).  All vacancies are being actively 
leased from the wait list. 
 
Rent collection at this property has been an issue due to a combination of the eviction 
moratorium, economic stress on working-class residents, and weakness in the former 
property management firm.  Staff  and new property management are now reviewing 
receivables on a weekly basis and have been able to connect directly with most of the 
affected households to work out payment plans.  Staff is providing frequent updates on 
the status of rent collections to the funders and have received feedback that conversion 
remains on schedule for the August 2023 deadline. 
 
Stabilization and Conversion 
The next major steps for the project are to achieve stabilization and conversion to the 
permanent loan phase.  The stabilization includes documentation of three months of 
stable operations.  Conversion requires that all tax credit units be appropriately leased, 
the stabilization period has passed, and the CPA firm has certified all costs of the 
project.  The CPA review of costs is under review.  Staff has received extensions from 
the construction lender and the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee on 
milestones and reporting that have not been able to be completed. It is anticipated that 
the conversion will occur in August 2023, before the September 1, 2023 deadline to 
utilize the interest rate lock.  At that time, AHA will be eligible to receive an additional 
developer fee, and the construction loan will be paid off by investor proceeds and the 
permanent loan.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Until the project converts to the permanent loan, all guarantees are in place and the 
construction loan is recourse to ICD and the Housing Authority.  In addition, the project 
still needs to meet the major milestone of conversion to avoid losing its interest rate lock 
and  to pay out additional developer fee.  At this point, the project continues to be under 
budget, largely due to construction cost savings.  
 
CEQA 
Not applicable.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Accept the Monthly Development Report for Rosefield Village.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
None  
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Sylvia Martinez, Director of Housing Development 





    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Lynette Jordan, Director of Housing Programs  

Date:  
  

June 21, 2023  

Re: Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Housing Programs 
Department.  

BACKGROUND 
This memo is a high-level overview of Housing Programs Department (HPD) activities 
for the month of May 2023.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Office Hours Update 
Effective July 10, 2023, our open office hours will change to 8:30 a.m. - 3:00 p.m. As the 
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) transitions to the MTW model and HCV 
leasing efforts increase, it will be important that we are available to the public to service 
their ongoing needs. With many of our processes moving online and our continued 
efforts to develop more efficiencies to assist participants online and virtually, we may 
not see that high of an increase in visitors to the office. However, staff will be prepared 
to meet the needs of our participants and visitors to our office. 
 
Online Recertification Update 
Earlier this year, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) reinstated our in-
person Rent Café Workshops to assist with the online recertification/ interim portal. AHA 
participants needing assistance or training on how to complete an annual or interim 
certification through the online portal can attend the workshop where staff can assist at 
the in-person workshop. 

 Annual and Interim recertification processing 
 Password and sign on issues 
 Uploading documents 
 Training on the Rent Cafe portal system  
 The workshops are held every other Wednesday at 10 a.m. -11 a.m., at 703 
Atlantic Avenue, Alameda, CA 94501 in the Ruth Rambeau Community Room.  

 Yardi Applicant Portal Voucher Issuance 



 

AHA staff continue to use the new applicant portal to process the 200 applicants 
selected from the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) waitlist on March 3, 2023. Utilizing 
the portal, staff were able to make the leasing efforts easily accessible for applicants on 
the HCV waitlist and ensured all applicants were contacted by email address or mail. Of 
the 200 applicants outreached to, 160 applicants responded, and 140 submitted the 
needed documents to be processed for a voucher. To date, AHA staff have issued 69 
vouchers. Staff are actively processing the remaining applicants and review the our 
leasing goals to determine if more applicants will need to be selected.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
For report only, no fiscal impact.  
 
CEQA 
N/A  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Accept the Quarterly Overview of the Housing Programs Department.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Copy of 10-C Attachment 1 -HPD Performance 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

  
Lynette Jordan, Director of Housing Programs 





    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Janet Basta, Director of Human Resources and Operations  

Date:  
  

June 21, 2023  

Re: Approve a one-time pilot to allow the cash out of accrued leave 
during calendar year 2024.  

BACKGROUND 
In November 2020, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) Management 
proposed eliminating the Vacation Pay-Out provision included in the Vacation Leave 
policy, among other changes to the policy impacting caps on vacation accrual. It was 
explained that offering a vacation pay-out would have been an option to address high 
vacation accrual balances, but legal counsel had provided updated guidance that there 
would be significant tax implications to all employees should any employees participate 
in a pay-out that might be offered. At that time, the Board elected to not adopt that 
portion of the proposed policy changes that addressed the vacation pay-out provision 
and requested that additional information regarding options be provided. 
  
Management returned to the Board in October 2021 and recommended eliminating the 
Vacation Pay-Out provision in the upcoming Employee Handbook revision. This change 
was adopted in February 2022.  
 
DISCUSSION 
At the time of elimination of the Vacation Pay-Out policy, Management had explored 
and reported on alternative approaches to the policy that was in place as requested and 
did not recommend adopting the only approach available due to the complexity of the 
approach and resulting administrative burden reasons. However, changes were made 
to the maximum vacation accrual cap to allow for increases to the maximum accrual of 
vacation leave; these changes were made primarily in response to COVID-19 which 
restricted the availability of vacation leave use during the pandemic. The current 
vacation policy provides for a gradual reduction of the accrual cap to the original level of 
250 hours effective January 1, 2024. 
  
Even with the gradual reduction in place and travel options becoming more available, a 
significant number of staff have had to use vacation incrementally to stay below the cap 
or have hit the cap and ceased to accrue additional vacation. As of the beginning of 



June, there were nine staff with accrual balances greater than 250 hours. This is due to 
a variety of reasons, including staff with longer tenure (and thus higher accrual rates) or 
increases to accrual amounts that have been granted, as well as ongoing work needs 
due to vacancies/leaves and new work opportunities, some with tight deadlines, that 
can make it challenging to use vacation leave in a timely fashion. Even with planned 
time off in the upcoming months, there is a likelihood that at least some of the staff with 
high balances will have difficulty bringing and keeping those comfortably under the 
accrual cap in the upcoming year.  
  
As a result, Management is proposing offering a cash in lieu of vacation pilot that would 
be in effect for 2024. This pilot program has been reviewed by HR legal and would meet 
the requirements of such programs to avoid constructive receipt of income, explained 
below.  
  
Under Federal Regulations, compensation is included in an employee’s gross income in 
the year it is received, whether it is actually received or constructively received. 
Constructive receipt of income occurs when compensation is credited to an employee’s 
account or otherwise made available so that the employee could have drawn upon it 
during the taxable year if notice of intention to withdraw had been given. This is true 
even if the employee never actually withdraws the funds (i.e. in this case, requests a 
pay-out of vacation leave). However, income is not constructively received if the 
employee’s control of its receipt is “subject to substantial limitations or restrictions.” (26 
C.F.R § 1.451-2(a).) The current program/pilot policy has been created to be within the 
substantial limitations or restrictions in place that would prevent constructive receipt 
being triggered. 
  
The proposed plan is one where employees elect in the current calendar year how 
much vacation they want to cash out in the subsequent year. The election must be 
irrevocable, and only leave accrued during the calendar year when the cash-out occurs 
is eligible to be cashed out. For example, to cash out leave in calendar year 2024, an 
employee would need to make an irrevocable election to cash out X hours of leave in 
2023, and only leave earned in 2024 would be eligible to be cashed out during 2024. 
Further details are included in Exhibit 1.  
  
This is proposed as a one-time pilot that will be evaluated for its utilization and 
administrative/operational impact. Staff will report back to the Board periodically and will 
make a final recommendation prior to 2025 regarding whether or not to adopt this as a 
formal policy and incorporate it into the Employee Handbook.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Depending on the number of staff that elect to participate, the amount of their elections, 
and the salary levels of those that participate, there will potentially be additional 
compensation paid out in 2024. Capping the amount of each employee's request at 80 
hours will help to moderate the impact of this, and staff will include a report of payments 
made under this pilot program in the follow-up report to the Board. While it is difficult to 
project how many staff may participate, it is anticipated that savings from unfilled 



positions will likely be adequate to cover the cost of the pilot program, if approved.  
 
CEQA 
Not applicable to this item.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve a one-time pilot to allow the cash out of accrued leave during calendar year 
2024.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Exhibit 1 Pilot Policy Cash In Lieu of Leave 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Janet Basta, Director of Human Resources and Operations 



 

 



o

o
o





    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Louie So, Director of Finance  

Date:  
  

June 21, 2023  

Re: Approve transfer of up to $1,000,000 from MTW HAP reserves to 
cover the operating deficit incurred by the Housing Programs 
Department for Fiscal Year 2023.  

BACKGROUND 
Historically, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda's (AHA) Housing Programs 
Department have operated at a deficit, as HUD administrative fee income is insufficient 
to cover the costs of the department.  The Housing Programs Department administers 
the Housing Choice Voucher program and other special purpose vouchers (e.g. 
Emergency Housing Vouchers, Family Unification Program (FUP), Veterans Affairs 
Supportive Housing (VASH)).  The properties owned by AHA & Alameda Affordable 
Housing Corporation (AAHC) have subsidized this operating deficit for the last 8 fiscal 
years.  The Board of Commissioners have previously approved in the May 2022 
meeting for staff to transfer up to $1,325,697 in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 (July 1, 2022 
through July 31, 2023), as needed, from AHA/AAHC property reserves to cover losses 
in the Housing Program Department administrative operating budget. 
 
As AHA is now a Moving-To-Work (MTW) agency through an executed MTW Annual 
Contributions Contract Amendment, AHA is eligible to utilize funding streams to support 
any eligible MTW expense provided applicable MTW requirements (e.g. annual 
planning and reporting requirements) are followed.  MTW agencies are allowed to shift 
HCV assistance (including Administrative Fee and Housing Assistance Payments 
(HAP)) to purposes other than those for which they were originally appropriated, which 
is referred to as fungibility.  Please note the total funding AHA receives from HUD 
remains unchanged and that such an action may have an impact on AHA's ability to 
fulfill the MTW requirement regarding minimum number of families served.  As such, 
AHA's unspent HAP reserves can be utilized on a fungible basis, including supporting 
any operating deficits in the Housing Programs Department.    
 
DISCUSSION 
As of May 2023, HUD reported that HUD held reserves was approximately $4.2 Million. 
It is expected that based on actual accounting from July 2022 through May 2023 and 



projected for June 2023, the Housing Programs Department operating deficit from July 
1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 is approximately $1,000,000.  Upon approval by the 
Board of Commissioners, staff will request from HUD to transfer these funds from 
unspent restricted HAP funds to backfill the Housing Program Department deficit in lieu 
of transferring funds from AHA/AAHC property reserves as previously approved by the 
Board.  This proposed action has been reviewed as to consistency with MTW 
requirement by, Rod Solomon, Partner with the law firm Hawkins Delafield & Wood 
LLP.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Please see recommendation.  
 
CEQA 
N/A  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve transfer of up to $1,000,000 from MTW HAP reserves to cover the operating 
deficit incurred by the Housing Programs Department for Fiscal Year 2022-23.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
None  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Louie So 
Louie So, Director of Finance 



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Sylvia Martinez, Director of Housing Development  

Date:  
  

June 21, 2023  

Re: Approve the Seventh Amendment to the Consultant Services 
Agreement dated 4/15/15 between Island City Development and 
the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda.  

BACKGROUND 
In 2015, a three-year Consultant Services Agreement was signed by and between 
Island City Development (ICD) and the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) 
for the delivery of real estate development services. The scope and deliverables include 
the strategy, financing, and implementation of affordable housing development activities 
such as rehabilitation and new construction. In addition, ICD is asked to provide 
technical assistance on affordable housing opportunities in the City of Alameda. This 
contract has been renewed six times, extending the time period and additional fee by 
one year each time. The Sixth Amendment expires 12/31/2024.  
 
DISCUSSION 
ICD continues to be the development arm of the Housing Authority of the City of 
Alameda and has taken on the financing and development of Littlejohn Commons, 
Everett Commons, and Rosefield projects in the period from 2015 to the present.  ICD 
has implemented entitlement and predevelopment activities on the North Housing site 
and plans to continue developing this site in phases. ICD anticipates that it will have five 
active projects starting in 2023 - three phases of North Housing, Poppy Place (Hotel 
Conversion) and the The Poplar (2615 Eagle) site. Thus, staff proposes that the fee for 
staffing services from AHA increase to $300,000. To support these efforts, staff 
proposes an extension of the services agreement until 12/31/2026.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The AHA fee is typically paid in the second half of the year. In late 2023, if this 
agreement is approved, ICD will pay AHA a total of $300,000 per year for staffing 
services for housing development staff. The funds will come from developer fee income. 
Payments of $300,000 will continue in 2024-2026, supported by future developer fees.  
 



CEQA 
Not applicable  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the Seventh Amendment to the Consultant Services Agreement dated 4/15/15 
between Island City Development and the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Att 1 - Amendment 7 to ICD-AHA Services Agreement 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Sylvia Martinez, Director of Housing Development 



Att 1 Draft Seventh Amendment ICD-AHA Services Agreement

SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO THE
CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT

BETWEEN ISLAND CITY DEVELOPMENT AND
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

THIS SIXTH AMENDMENT to the Consultant Services Agreement (the “Agreement”), entered 
into this 18th day of May 2022, by and between ISLAND CITY DEVELOPMENT, a California 
nonprofit public benefit corporation (“ICD) and the HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY 
OF ALAMEDA a public body corporation ("AHA"), is made with reference to the following:

A. On April 15, 2015, the Agreement was entered into by and between ICD and 
AHA for delivery of real estate development services; and

B. On December 5, 2017, the Agreement was amended to extend the completion date 
to December 31, 2018

C. On December 20, 2018, the Agreement was amended to extend the completion 
date to December 31, 2019.

D. On November 8, 2019, the Agreement was amended to extend the completion 
date to December 31, 2020.

E. On December 16, 2020, the Agreement was amended to extend the completion 
date to December 31, 2021.

F. On November 17, 2021, the Agreement was amended to extend the completion 
date to December 31, 2022. 

G. On May 18, 2022, the Agreement was amended to extend the term of the contract 
to December 31, 2024 with an increased annual contract amount of $200,000.

H. ICD and AHA desire to extend the term of the contract for two further years with 
an increased annual contract amount of $300,000 and a completion date of 
December 31, 2026.

I. Consultant compensation shall be increased, pursuant to the Agreement, in the 
amount of $300,000 annually for calendar years 2023 and 2024, for a total 
contract amount not to exceed $1,800,000.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, it is mutually agreed by and 
between and undersigned parties that paragraphs 1. TERM and 3. COMPENSATION TO 
CONSULTANT, shall be replaced in whole with the following paragraphs:

1. TERM:  The time for Completion set forth in the contract is nine years, ending December 
31, 2026, unless terminated earlier as set forth herein.



Att 1 Draft Seventh Amendment ICD-AHA Services Agreement

2.  COMPENSATION TO CONSULTANT: Consultant shall be compensated for services 
performed pursuant to this Agreement in the amount of $300,000 annually, for a contract 
total not to exceed $1,800,000.  Payment will be made based upon the Consultant’s 
submitted and approved invoice.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this modification of 
Agreement to be executed on the day and year first above written.

ISLAND CITY DEVELOPMENT HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 
ALAMEDA

_______________________
Vanessa Cooper Vanessa Cooper
President Executive Director



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Tonya Schuler-Cummins, Principal Management Analyst  

Date:  
  

June 21, 2023  

Re: Adopt of a uniform standard for housing inspections standards for 
all Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) funded or AHA 
owned or affiliate-owned housing units irrespective of funding 
source.  

BACKGROUND 
The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) is responsible for maintaining the 
housing quality standards in it’s affiliated units. 24 CFR Par. 5, Subpart G; see also Cal. 
Civ. Code § 1954.  
  
The Housing Quality Standards (HQS) are a minimum set by HUD and may be 
augmented (but not reduced) by a PHA. AHA has approved its HQS in the Board 
approved Administrative Plan which is available to the public on our website. 
  
For many years now, AHA has used a third party inspection company, ISterling, to 
conduct annual HQS inspections for inspections of AHA-owned or affiliated properties 
and for most inspections of private market properties under the Housing Choice 
Voucher program. Using a third party inspection firms allows for independence in the 
event of a dispute with the tenant over habitability and provides for a more uniform 
application of standards. 
  
Such inspections are conducted for all AHA- owned or affiliated physical units 
 irrespective of the financing and subsidy of the household. This is because AHA is 
responsible for common areas and for housing issues in one unit that may spread to 
another (e.g. pest, fire, odors and fumes). In addition such uniform application helps 
prevent fair housing claims since the same standards are set for all units. This provides 
an independent check of the work of the third party property management company, 
FPI. AHA staff do quality control checks on the third party HQS inspector.  
  
On some cities, the city conducts regular property or unit inspections annually to ensure 
habitability. No such regime exists in Alameda, despite a strong set of other protections 
for renters. Most AHA-affiliated properties are also directly owned and therefore are also 



not inspected by other third parties such as TCAC or the county.  
 
DISCUSSION 
HQS inspections are due to be replaced in the coming months by HUD’s new system 
NSPIRE. This new system places greater emphasis on overall building and common 
area standards than HQS. 
  
While the specifics of the NSPIR system will come to the Board as part of an update to 
the Administrative Plan, the board is asked to ratify the policy of annual, third party 
inspections under HCV or another HUD approved system annually for all AHA owned 
units.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The cost of these inspections is already included in the budget for 2023-24.  
 
CEQA 
Not applicable.    
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt of a uniform standard for housing inspections standards for all AHA-funded or 
AHA owned or affiliate-owned housing units irrespective of funding source.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
None  
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Tonya Schuler-Cummins, Principal Management Analyst 



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Sepideh Kiumarsi, Management Analyst  

Date:  
  

June 21, 2023  

Re: Adopt Resolution regarding Application for and Implementation of 
Faircloth to RAD program for Independence Plaza to Authorize the 
Executive Director or designee to execute all steps necessary to 
apply for, negotiate and execute all documents and implement all 
activities necessary to apply for Faircloth to RAD conversion and 
related activities in order to proceed with the recapitalization of 
Independence Plaza and budget up to $250,000 for due diligence, 
and other related activities.   

BACKGROUND 
The Faircloth Amendment, enacted as a part of the Public Housing Reform Act in 1998, 
capped the number of Public Housing units for a PHA at the level in existence on 
October 1, 1999. At that time, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) had 
120 units of Public Housing which have since remained on HUD’s books with HUD as 
AHA’s Faircloth Limit. Faircloth-to-RAD (FTR) is a 2021 HUD initiative that allows the 
units under the Faircloth Limit to be developed as Public Housing and then converted to 
Project-Based assistance under the RAD program. These units also come with new and 
ongoing funding at the level for which HUD provides for new Public Housing units.  
 
DISCUSSION 
In May 2023, the AHA presented its Faircloth-to-RAD approach to the Board of 
Commissioners and received approval to expend its 120-unit Faircloth limit and undergo 
the Faircloth-to-RAD process at Independence Plaza. 
  
The AHA would now like to move forward with the Faircloth-to-RAD application process 
and, as such, is seeking approval to complete the necessary actions in order to 
complete the Faircloth-to-RAD application process. Actions include but are not limited 
to: robust communication with residents; submission to HUD of public housing 
development and RAD application and other materials; reservation of RAD units under 
the national unit cap; procuring specialized relocation, legal, architectural and other 
assistance as needed; conducting necessary due diligence; developing a rehabilitation 
scope of work; committing AHA annual funding; obtaining financing; closing; adjusting 



resident rents; conducting temporary resident relocation as necessary; implementing 
other aspects of the rehabilitation and RAD conversion; and reporting on progress to the 
Board of Commissioners. 
 
Staff will come back to the Board for financial approval if needed for rehabilitation work.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Staff expects the cost of due diligence and other related activities to be less than 
$250,000 for legal and financial consulting, studies, and reports.  
 
CEQA 
Not Applicable.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt Resolution regarding Application for and Implementation of Faircloth to RAD 
program for Independence Plaza to Authorize the Executive Director or designee to 
execute all steps necessary to apply for, negotiate and execute all documents and 
implement all activities necessary to apply for Faircloth to RAD conversion and related 
activities in order to proceed with the recapitalization of Independence Plaza and budget 
up to $250,000 for due diligence, and other related activities.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. RESOLUTION No. TBD - Adopt Resolution TBD regarding Application for and 

Implementation of Faircloth to RAD program for Independence Plaza 06.21. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

Sepideh Kiumarsi 

Sepideh Kiumarsi, Management Analyst 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Resolution No.  TBD

Approve application for and implementation of 
Faircloth to RAD program for Independence Plaza

WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) is 
offering a “Faircloth to RAD” (FTR) initiative; and

WHEREAS, FTR provides housing authorities eligible to replace public housing units 
demolished or disposed of since October 1, 1999 with ongoing operating and capital funding 
(but not initial capital funding) to replace such units, to be produced as public housing and 
then converted to Section 8 long-term contracts under HUD’s Rental Assistance 
Demonstration (RAD); and

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) is eligible for 
additional subsidy to support up to 120 FTR units; and

WHEREAS, the AHA staff has examined alternatives for receipt of FTR funds and has 
concluded that FTR funds should be deployed to support the rehabilitation of Independence 
Plaza and the reduction of rents for Independence Plaza households now paying more than 
30 percent of their adjusted incomes; and

WHEREAS, the AHA staff estimates preliminarily that the use of FTR at 
Independence Plaza would generate approximately $900,000 annually in new HUD funding 
plus inflation-related adjustments, which would need to be supplemented by approximately 
$800,000 annually in AHA’s Moving to Work (MTW) funding plus inflation-related adjustments 
to provide for operating feasibility and modest rehabilitation; and

WHEREAS, the FTR process requires various steps to obtain HUD approval to 
develop public housing and then to convert public housing to Section 8 under RAD; and

WHEREAS, the AHA’s staff and consultant discussed the potential commitment of 
FTR to and use of FTR and MTW funds with the Board of Commissioners in detail at the 
Board of Commissioners meeting of May 17, 2023 and presented a detailed PowerPoint 
regarding this possibility;  

NOW, THEREFORE. BE IT RESOLVED, That: 

1. The AHA shall take all appropriate steps to apply to HUD, obtain HUD approval for and implement 
a Faircloth to RAD conversion of up to 120 units at Independence Plaza (the Conversion).  

2. These steps are expected to include robust communication with residents; submission to HUD of 
public housing development and RAD application and other materials; reservation of RAD units 
under the national unit cap; procuring specialized relocation, legal, architectural and other 
assistance as needed; conducting necessary due diligence; developing a rehabilitation scope of 
work; committing AHA annual funding; obtaining financing; closing; adjusting resident rents; 
conducting temporary resident relocation as necessary; implementing other aspects of the 
rehabilitation and RAD conversion; and reporting on progress to the Board of Commissioners.  



3. The budget for outside assistance shall not exceed $250,000 without further approval of the Board 
of Commissioners.

4. The Executive Director and her designees are authorized to take the above steps and any others 
as necessary to complete the Conversion.

ATTEST:

Vanessa M. Cooper 
Secretary/Executive Director

Adopted:  

Kenji Tamaoki, Acting 
Chair
Board of Commissioners



    

 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 

From:  
  

Tonya Schuler-Cummins, Principal Management Analyst  

Date:  
  

June 21, 2023  

Re: Approve changes to the Administrative Plan to implement the 
approved MTW activities and new stability vouchers effective July 
1, 2023.  

BACKGROUND 
The Administrative Plan for the Housing Choice Voucher Program (HCVP) for the 
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) establishes the policies and procedures 
whereby AHA will administer HCVP tenant-based and project-based rental assistance 
programs under contract to HUD and in accordance with applicable statutes, HUD 
regulations, and state and local law.  In March 2022, the AHA was designated a Moving 
to Work (MTW) Agency with the Landlord Incentives Expansion Cohort.  This allows the 
AHA to request waivers of regulations from HUD through the Annual Plan and MTW 
Supplement process.  In order to implement some activities, a revision of the 
Administrative Plan is required.    
 
DISCUSSION 
This revision is to implement the MTW activities that HUD approved in March 2023.  It 
also corrects outdated material, typographical errors, and updates the policy for 
required regulation changes and approved MTW activities.  Also, the AHA was awarded 
new Stability Vouchers in June 2023, so this revision includes the policies needed for 
that program, which are very similar to the EHV program.  A second major revision of 
the Administrative Plan will be presented later in the year to implement PIH Notice 
2023-03 which requires more Housing Opportunity through Modernization Act (HOTMA) 
regulation changes.  It is also possible that HUD will have finalized the implementation 
of the National Standards for the Physical Inspection of Real Estate (NSPIRE) this 
calendar year, which will also require a revision of the Administrative Plan.  This revision 
does not address either of these last two HUD-required changes.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
This Amendment to the HCVP Administrative Plan will implement the federally-funded 
landlord incentives and vacancy loss payments as allowed under the approved MTW 
activities.  It will not, however, change the level of funding the AHA receives from HUD.   



 
CEQA 
Not applicable.    
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve changes to the Administrative Plan to implement the approved MTW activities 
and new stability vouchers effective July 2023.    
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. For June 2023 BOC Updated Admin Plan with Approved MTW changes 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Tonya Schuler-Cummins, Principal Management Analyst 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN  
 

FOR THE 
 

SECTION 8 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM 
 

OF 
 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Administrative Plan  TOC - 1 - December 2022June 2023 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN  TABLE OF CONTENTS   

CHAPTER 1: OVERVIEW OF THE PROGRAM AND PLAN ......................................... 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

CHAPTER 2: FAIR HOUSING AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY ....................................... 1 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 



Administrative Plan  TOC - 2 - December 2022June 2023 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 3: ELIGIBILITY ............................................................................................. 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

CHAPTER 4: APPLICATIONS, WAITING LIST AND TENANT SELECTION ............... 1 



Administrative Plan  TOC - 3 - December 2022June 2023 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

CHAPTER 5: BRIEFINGS AND VOUCHER ISSUANCE ............................................... 1 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

CHAPTER 6: INCOME AND SUBSIDY DETERMINATIONS ......................................... 1 

 

 
 
 
 



Administrative Plan  TOC - 4 - December 2022June 2023 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

CHAPTER 7: VERIFICATION ........................................................................................ 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



Administrative Plan  TOC - 5 - December 2022June 2023 

 

 
 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

CHAPTER 8: HOUSING QUALITY STANDARDS AND RENT REASONABLENESS 
DETERMINATIONS ........................................................................................................ 1  

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 



Administrative Plan  TOC - 6 - December 2022June 2023 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

CHAPTER 9: GENERAL LEASING POLICIES .............................................................. 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

CHAPTER 10: MOVING WITH CONTINUED ASSISTANCE AND PORTABILITY ....... 1 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

CHAPTER 11: REEXAMINATIONS ............................................................................... 1 

 

 

 

 

 



Administrative Plan  TOC - 7 - December 2022June 2023 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

CHAPTER 12: TERMINATION OF ASSISTANCE AND TENANCY .............................. 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Administrative Plan  TOC - 8 - December 2022June 2023 

 

 

CHAPTER 13: OWNERS ................................................................................................ 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

CHAPTER 14: PROGRAM INTEGRITY ......................................................................... 1 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

CHAPTER 15: PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION ............................................................. 1 

 



Administrative Plan  TOC - 9 - December 2022June 2023 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 16: PROJECT-BASED VOUCHERS ............................................................ 1 

 



Administrative Plan  TOC - 10 - December 2022June 2023 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Administrative Plan  TOC - 11 - December 2022June 2023 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

CHAPTER 17: FAMILY SELF-SUFFICIENCY PROGRAM ............................................ 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Administrative Plan  TOC - 12 - December 2022June 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 18: HUD-VASH PROGRAM ......................................................................... 1 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 19: EMERGENCY HOUSING VOUCHERS/STABILITY VOUCHERS ......... 1 

 

 

 
 



Administrative Plan  TOC - 13 - December 2022June 2023 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

GLOSSARY .................................................................................................................... 1 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 1-1 December 2022June 2023 

 

CHAPTER 1 

OVERVIEW OF THE PROGRAM AND PLAN 

INTRODUCTION 

PART I: THE AHA 

1-I.A. OVERVIEW 

 

1-I.B. ORGANIZATION AND STRUCTURE OF THE AHA 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 1-2 December 2022June 2023 

 

1-I.C. AHA MISSION 

 

1- GRAMS 

1- MITMENT TO ETHICS AND SERVICE 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 1-3 December 2022June 2023 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 1-4 December 2022June 2023 

 

PART II. THE HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER (HCV) PROGRAM 

1-II.A. OVERVIEW AND HISTORY OF THE PROGRAM 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 1-5 December 2022June 2023 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 1-6 December 2022June 2023 

 

1-II.B. HCV PROGRAM BASICS 

1-II.C. THE HCV PARTNERSHIPS 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 1-7 December 2022June 2023 

 

The HCV Relationships: 

 

o

o

o

 Congress 
Appropriates 

Funding 

HUD 
Provides Funding 

To AHA 

AHA 
Administers 

Program  

Voucher specifies 
Family Obligations 

Housing Assistance Payments 
(HAP) Contract specifies Owner 

and AHA Obligations 

Program Regulations and ACC 
specifies AHA Obligations and 

Voucher Funding 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 1-8 December 2022June 2023 

 

What does HUD do? 

What does the AHA do?

Owner / Landlord  Family 
(Program 

Participant)  

Lease specifies Tenant 
and Landlord 
Obligations 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 1-9 December 2022June 2023 

 

What does the Owner do?

What does the Family do?



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 1-10 December 2022June 2023 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 1-11 December 2022June 2023 

 

1-II.D. APPLICABLE REGULATIONS 

PART III. THE HCV ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN 

1-III.A. OVERVIEW AND PURPOSE OF THE PLAN 

1-III.B. CONTENTS OF THE PLAN (24CFR 982.54) 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 1-12 December 2022June 2023 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 1-13 December 2022June 2023 

 

1-III.C. ORGANIZATION OF THE PLAN 

1-III.D. UPDATING AND REVISING THE PLAN 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 2-1 December 2022June 2023 

 

CHAPTER 2 

FAIR HOUSING AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY 

INTRODUCTION 

 
 Federal Register. 

 

PART I: NONDISCRIMINATION 

2-I.A. OVERVIEW 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 2-2 December 2022June 2023 

 

et seq. 

2-I.B. NONDISCRIMINATION 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 2-3 December 2022June 2023 

 

 

 

Providing Information to Families and Owners 

 

Discrimination Complaints 

 .



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 2-4 December 2022June 2023 

 

 

PART II: POLICIES RELATED TO PERSONS WITH DISABIILTIES 

2-II.A. OVERVIEW 

 

2-II.B. DEFINITION OF REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION 

Types of Reasonable Accommodations



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 2-5 December 2022June 2023 

 

 

 

2-II.C. REQUEST FOR AN ACCOMMODATION 

 

2-II.D. VERIFICATION OF DISABILITY 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 2-6 December 2022June 2023 

 

 

2-II.E. APPROVAL/DENIAL OF A REQUESTED ACCOMMODATION 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 2-7 December 2022June 2023 

 

2-II.F. PROGRAM ACCESSIBILITY FOR PERSONS WITH HEARING OR VISION 
IMPAIRMENTS  

 

2-II.G. PHYSICAL ACCESSIBILITY 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 2-8 December 2022June 2023 

 

  

2-II.H. DENIAL OR TERMINATION OF ASSISTANCE 

PART III:  IMPROVING ACCESS TO SERVICES FOR PERSONS WITH LIMITED 
ENGLISH PROFICIENCY (LEP) 

2-III.A. OVERVIEW 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 2-9 December 2022June 2023 

 

Federal Register. 

.  

2-III.B. ORAL INTERPRETATION 

Formal Interpreters:

Informal Interpreters:  



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 2-10 December 2022June 2023 

 

2-III.C. WRITTEN TRANSLATION 

2-III.D. IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 2-11 December 2022June 2023 

 

2-III.E.PART IV: AFFIRMATIVELY FURTHERING FAIR HOUSING IN THE FAMILY 
UNIFICATION PROGRAM AND OTHER PROGRAMS COVERED BY THIS 
ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN 

.  



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 2-12 December 2022June 2023 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 2-13 December 2022June 2023 

 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 2-14 December 2022June 2023 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2-1: DEFINITION OF A PERSON WITH A DISABILITY UNDER 
FEDERAL CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS [24 CFR Parts 8.3 and 100.201] 

EXHIBIT 2-1: DEFINITION OF A PERSON WITH A DISABILITY UNDER  

FEDERAL CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS [24 CFR Parts 8.3 and 100.201] 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 2-15 December 2022June 2023 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-1 December 2022June 2023 

 

CHAPTER 3 

ELIGIBILITY 

INTRODUCTION 

PART I: DEFINITIONS OF FAMILY AND HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS  

3-I.A. OVERVIEW 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-2 December 2022June 2023 

 

3-I.B. FAMILY AND HOUSEHOLD [24 CFR 982.201(C), HUD-50058 IB, P. 13] 

family household

Family 

Family

 

Household 

Household

3-I.C. FAMILY BREAK-UP AND REMAINING MEMBER OF TENANT FAMILY  

Family Break-up [24 CFR 982.315] 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-3 December 2022June 2023 

 

Remaining Member of a Tenant Family [24 CFR 5.403] 

remaining member of a tenant family, 

3-I.D. HEAD OF HOUSEHOLD [24 CFR 5.504(B)] 

Head of household 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-4 December 2022June 2023 

 

3-I.E. SPOUSE, COHEAD, AND OTHER ADULT  

Spouse

cohead

Other adult

3-I.F. DEPENDENT [24 CFR 5.603] 

dependent

. 

Joint Custody of Dependents 

3-I.G. FULL-TIME STUDENT [24 CFR 5.603, HVCHCV GB ELIGIBILITY 
DETERMINATION AND DENIAL OF ASSISTANCE PG. 7P. 5-29] 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-5 December 2022June 2023 

 

3-I.H. ELDERLY AND NEAR-ELDERLY PERSONS, AND ELDERLY FAMILY [24 CFR 
5.100 AND 5.403] 

Elderly Persons  

elderly person

Near-Elderly Persons

near-elderly person

Elderly Family 

elderly family

3-I.I. PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES AND DISABLED FAMILY [24 CFR 5.403] 

Persons with Disabilities  

Disabled Family.   

Disabled Family  

disabled family



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-6 December 2022June 2023 

 

 

 

3-I.J. GUESTS [24 CFR 5.100] 

guest

3.I.K. FOSTER CHILDREN AND FOSTER ADULTS  

Foster adults

 foster child

 

foster child

3-I.L. ABSENT FAMILY MEMBERS 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-7 December 2022June 2023 

 

 

Definitions of Temporarily and Permanently Absent  

Absent Students  

Absences Due to Placement in Foster Care [24 CFR 5.403] 

Absent Head, Spouse, or Cohead 

Family Members Permanently Confined for Medical Reasons [HCV GB, p. 5-22] 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-8 December 2022June 2023 

 

Return of Permanently Absent Family Members 

3-I.M. LIVE-IN AIDE 

Live-in aide

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-9 December 2022June 2023 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-10 December 2022June 2023 

 

PART II: BASIC ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 

3-II.A. INCOME ELIGIBILITY AND TARGETING 

Income Limits  

Types of Low-Income Families 

Low-income family. 

Very low-income family. 

Extremely low-income family. 
 

Using Income Limits for Eligibility [24 CFR 982.201] 

very low-income

low-income



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-11 December 2022June 2023 

 

Using Income Limits for Targeting [24 CFR 982.201] 

 

3-II.B. CITIZENSHIP OR ELIGIBLE IMMIGRATION STATUS [24 CFR 5, SUBPART E] 

Declaration [24 CFR 5.508]



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-12 December 2022June 2023 

 

U.S. Citizens and Nationals 

Eligible Noncitizens 

 

Ineligible Noncitizens 

Mixed Families 

mixed families

Ineligible Families [24 CFR 5.514(d), (e), and (f)] 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-13 December 2022June 2023 

 

 

Timeframe for Determination of Citizenship Status [24 CFR 5.508(g)]

3-II.C. SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBERS [24 CFR 5.216 AND 5.218] 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-14 December 2022June 2023 

 

3-II.D. FAMILY CONSENT TO RELEASE OF INFORMATION [24 CFR 5.230, HCV GB 
ELIGIBILITY DETERMINATION AND DENIAL OF ASSISTANCE PG. 14, P. 5-13] 

3-II.E. STUDENTS ENROLLED IN INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION [24 CFR 
5.612 AND FR NOTICE 4/10/06] 

Definitions 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-15 December 2022June 2023 

 

Dependent Child 

, dependent child

dependent

Independent Student 

independent student

et seq.



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-16 December 2022June 2023 

 

Institution of Higher Education 

 institution of higher education 

Parents 

parents

 

Veteran 

veteran

Determining Student Eligibility 

independent student



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-17 December 2022June 2023 

 

Determining Parental Income Eligibility 

independent student

PART III: DENIAL OF ASSISTANCE 

3-III.A. OVERVIEW 

Forms of Denial [24 CFR 982.552(a)(2); HCV GB ELIGIBILITY DETERMINATION AND 
DENIAL OF ASSISTANCE PG. 21, p. 5-35]



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-18 December 2022June 2023 

 

Prohibited Reasons for Denial of Assistance [24 CFR 982.202(b), 24 CFR 
982.202(d)] 

3-III.B. MANDATORY DENIAL OF ASSISTANCE [24 CFR 982.553(A)]  

Currently engaged in



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-19 December 2022June 2023 

 

3-III.C. OTHER PERMITTED REASONS FOR DENIAL OF ASSISTANCE 

Criminal Activity [24 CFR 982.553] 

Drug-related criminal activity

Violent criminal activity

Immediate vicinity



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-20 December 2022June 2023 

 

Previous Behavior in Assisted Housing [24 CFR 982.552(c)] 

will not

will



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-21 December 2022June 2023 

 

Abusive or violent behavior towards AHA personnel

Threatening

3-III.D. SCREENING 

Screening for Eligibility  

Screening for Suitability as a Tenant [24 CFR 982.307] 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-22 December 2022June 2023 

 

3-III.E. CRITERIA FOR DECIDING TO DENY ASSISTANCE 

Evidence [24 CFR 982.553(c)] 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-23 December 2022June 2023 

 

Preponderance of the evidence

Consideration of Circumstances [24 CFR 982.552(c)(2)] 

 

 

Removal of a Family Member's Name from the Application [24 CFR 982.552(c)(2)(ii)] 

Reasonable Accommodation [24 CFR 982.552(c)(2)(iv)] 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-24 December 2022June 2023 

 

3-III.F. NOTICE OF ELIGIBILITY OR DENIAL  

Eligible for Assistance 

 

 

3-III.G.  PROHIBITION AGAINST DENIAL OF ASSISTANCE TO VICTIMS OF 
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, AND STALKING [PUB. L. 113-4] 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-25 December 2022June 2023 

 

Notification and Victim Documentation 
 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-26 December 2022June 2023 

 

Perpetrator Removal or Documentation of Rehabilitation 

 

 

AHA Confidentiality Requirements 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-27 December 2022June 2023 

 

EXHIBIT 3-1: DETAILED DEFINITIONS RELATED TO DISABILITIES

 

EXHIBIT 3-1: DETAILED DEFINITIONS RELATED TO DISABILITIES 

Person with Disabilities [24 CFR 5.403] 

person with disabilities

or

and



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-28 December 2022June 2023 

 

Individual with Handicaps [24 CFR 8.3] 

Individual with handicaps

Major life activities

Is regarded as having an impairment



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-29 December 2022June 2023 

 

EXHIBIT 3-2: DEFINITION OF INSTITUTION OF HIGHER EDUCATION 
[20 U.S.C. 1001 and 1002] 

EXHIBIT 3-2: DEFINITION OF INSTITUTION OF HIGHER EDUCATION 

[20 U.S.C. 1001 and 1002] 

 

Eligibility of Students for Assisted Housing Under Section 8 of the U.S. Housing 
Act of 1937; Supplementary Guidance; Notice [Federal Register, April 10, 2006] 

Institution of Higher Education

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-30 December 2022June 2023 

 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-31 December 2022June 2023 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-32 December 2022June 2023 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-33 December 2022June 2023 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-34 December 2022June 2023 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-35 December 2022June 2023 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 3-36 December 2022June 2023 

 

Exhibit 3-3 DEFINITIONS 

VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN REAUTHORIZATION ACT OF 2013 (VAWA) 
 
 

Exhibit 3-3 DEFINITIONS 
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN REAUTHORIZATION ACT OF 2022 (VAWA) 

 

o  

o  

o
 

o
 

o
 

 

stalking
 

 

 

 

immediate family member  

o
 

o



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 4-1 December 2022June 2023 

 

CHAPTER 4 

APPLICATIONS, WAITING LIST AND TENANT SELECTION 

INTRODUCTION 

PART I: THE APPLICATION PROCESS 

4-I.A. OVERVIEW 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 4-2 December 2022June 2023 

 

4-I.B. APPLYING FOR ASSISTANCE 

Notification of Actions



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 4-3 December 2022June 2023 

 

4-I.C. ACCESSIBILITY OF THE APPLICATION PROCESS 

Elderly and Disabled Populations [24 CFR 8 and HCV GB ELIGIBILITY 
DETERMINATION AND DENIAL OF ASSISTANCE PG. 21GB, pp. 4-11  4-13] 

Limited English Proficiency 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 4-4 December 2022June 2023 

 

4-I.D. PLACEMENT ON THE WAITING LIST 

Ineligible for Placement on the Waiting List 

Eligible for Placement on the Waiting List 

PART II: MANAGING THE WAITING LIST 

4-II.A. OVERVIEW 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 4-5 December 2022June 2023 

 

4-II.B. ORGANIZATION OF THE WAITING LIST [24 CFR 982.204 AND 205] 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 4-6 December 2022June 2023 

 

4-II.C. OPENING AND CLOSING THE WAITING LIST [24 CFR 982.206] 

Closing the Waiting List 

PBV In-Place Family 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 4-7 December 2022June 2023 

 

Reopening the Waiting List 

Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity 

4-II.D. FAMILY OUTREACH [HCV GB, PP. 4-2 TO 4-4] 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 4-8 December 2022June 2023 

 

4-II.E. REPORTING CHANGES IN FAMILY CIRCUMSTANCES 

4-II.F. UPDATING A WAITING LIST [24 CFR 982.204] 

Purging the Waiting List 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 4-9 December 2022June 2023 

 

Remove from the Waiting List  

 

PART III:  SELECTION FOR ASSISTANCE 

4-III.A. OVERVIEW  

4-III.B. SELECTION AND FUNDING SOURCES 

Special Admissions [24 CFR 982.203] 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 4-10 December 2022June 2023 

 

Targeted Funding [24 CFR 982.204(e)] 

 

Regular HCV Funding 

4-III.C. SELECTION METHOD  



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 4-11 December 2022June 2023 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 4-12 December 2022June 2023 

 

Local Preferences and Point Values [24 CFR 982.207; HCV p. 4-16] 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 4-13 December 2022June 2023 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 4-14 December 2022June 2023 

 

(1)

 

(2)

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 4-15 December 2022June 2023 

 

At the time of initial application, the applicant certifies as to whether or not it is eligible 
for a preference, and the AHA will place the applicant on the waiting list according to the 
preference claimed. Preferences which are critical for proper placement on a particular 
waiting list may be verified prior to placement on the waiting list and again at time of 
selection.  All other preferences will be verified at the time of selection, and when a 

based on current circumstances.  If upon verification the AHA determines that the family 
does not qualify for the preference claimed, the family does not receive decthe 
preference. In this situation, the AHA will notify the applicant in writing that they do not 
qualify for the preference and will be returned to the waiting list with an update to the 
applicant record. 

Income Targeting Requirement [24 CFR 982.201(b)(2)] 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 4-16 December 2022June 2023 

 

Order of Selection 

4-III.D. NOTIFICATION OF SELECTION 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 4-17 December 2022June 2023 

 

4-III.E. THE APPLICATION INTERVIEW 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 4-18 December 2022June 2023 

 

 

 

4-III.F. COMPLETING THE APPLICATION PROCESS 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 5-1 June 2023December 2022 

 

CHAPTER 5 

BRIEFINGS AND VOUCHER ISSUANCE 

INTRODUCTION 

U U

U U

PART I: BRIEFINGS AND FAMILY OBLIGATIONS 

5-I.A. OVERVIEW 

5-I.B. BRIEFINGS [24 CFR 982.301] 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 5-2 June 2023December 2022 

 

REMOTE BRIEFINGS

Notification and Attendance 

Oral and Remote Briefing [24 CFR 982.301(a), PIH Notice 2020-32] 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 5-3 June 2023December 2022 

 

Briefing Packet [24 CFR 982.301(b)] 

 

 

, 

Protect Your Family from Lead in 
Your Home.

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 5-4 June 2023December 2022 

 

Additional Items to be Included in the Briefing Packet 

Things You Should Know (HUD-1140-OIG)
  

5-I.C. FAMILY OBLIGATIONS  



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 5-5 June 2023December 2022 

 

Time Frames for Reporting Changes Required By Family Obligations 

Family Obligations [24 CFR 982.551] 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 5-6 June 2023December 2022 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 5-7 June 2023December 2022 

 

 

PART II: SUBSIDY STANDARDS AND VOUCHER ISSUANCE 

5-II.A. OVERVIEW 

5-II.B. DETERMINING FAMILY UNIT (VOUCHER) SIZE [24 CFR 982.402] 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 5-8 June 2023December 2022 

 

-

-

-

-

-

 The subsidy standard provides one bedroom for every two persons, except for: 

A family with a Head of Household and no spouse/domestic partner/significant other 
would be allocated a subsidy size in the following manner: 

Family Size Voucher Size 

A family with a Head of Household and a spouse/domestic partner/significant other 
would be allocated a subsidy size in the following manner: 

Family Size Voucher Size 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 5-9 June 2023December 2022 

 

Family Size Voucher Size 

0BOvercrowded Units 

5-II.C. EXCEPTIONS TO SUBSIDY STANDARDS  

 

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 5-10 June 2023December 2022 

 

5-II.D. VOUCHER ISSUANCE AND RESCISSION [24 CFR 982.302] FOR HOUSING 
CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM 

2BVoucher Issuance 

3BVoucher Rescission 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 5-11 June 2023December 2022 

 

5-II.E. VOUCHER TERM, EXTENSIONS, AND SUSPENSIONS 

Voucher Term [24 CFR 982.303] 

Extensions of Voucher Term [24 CFR 982.303(b)] 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 5-12 June 2023December 2022 

 

 

Suspensions of Voucher Term [24 CFR 982.303(c)]  

 

 

Expiration of Voucher Term 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 6-1 June 2023December 2022 

 

CHAPTER 6 

INCOME AND SUBSIDY DETERMINATIONS 

INTRODUCTION 

PART I: ANNUAL INCOME 

6-I.A. OVERVIEW 

annual income

 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 6-2 June 2023December 2022 

 

6-I.B. HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION AND INCOME 

Summary of Income Included and Excluded by Person:

Temporarily Absent Family Members 

Absent Students  



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 6-3 June 2023December 2022 

 

Absences Due to Placement in Foster Care 

Absent Head, Spouse, or Cohead 

Family Members Permanently Confined for Medical Reasons 



 

Administrative Plan  Chapter 6-4 June 2023December 2022 

 

Joint Custody of Dependents 

6-I.C. ANTICIPATING ANNUAL INCOME  

Basis of Annual Income Projection 

Using Up-Front Income Verification (UIV) to Project Income 




